






BOARD OF EDUCATION
MEETING

  

  

DECEMBER 19, 2005

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

REGULAR MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147th STREET

DECEMBER 19, 2005

AGENDA
A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and
comments on agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board
President before the meeting begins.

E. Routine Matters*
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – December 5, 2005
2. *Approval of Bills
3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File

F. Information Items
1. Showcase: Fall Sports
2. Superintendent’s Report
3. Board Comments/Announcement
4. Report from Student Representatives

G. Unfinished Business

H. New Business
1. Receive and File the 2004-2005 Audit Report
2. Approval of Millard North High School Construction Contract Documents
3. Approval of Wide Area Network Data Lines and Telephone Services Contract
4. Approval of Rule 1340.1 – Community – Use of School Facilities and Equipment
5. Approval of New ELOs and Associated Cutscores
6. Approval to Change Board Meetings in January
7. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignation, Leave of Absence, Voluntary Early

Separation, Local Option Substitute for Hire, and New Hires
8. Litigation (Executive Session)
9. Land Acquisition (Executive Session)

I. Reports
1. Preliminary Enrollment Projections
2. Bond Issue Construction Report
3. Technology Purchase Update

2



Agenda
December 19, 2005
Page 2

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 16, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
2. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, January 23, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 6, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 13, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 20, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in
a single motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board
member.

3



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

REGULAR MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET

DECEMBER 19, 2005

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM
A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and
comments on agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board
President prior to the meeting.

*E.1. Motion by _______________, seconded by ______________, to approve the Board of
Education Minutes - December 5, 2005. (See enclosure.)

*E.2. Motion by _______________, seconded by ______________, to approve bills. (See
enclosure.)

*E.3. Motion by _______________, seconded by ______________, to receive the treasurer’s
report and place on file. (See enclosure.)

F.1. Showcase: Fall Sports

F.2. Superintendent’s Report

F.3. Board Comments/Announcement

F.4. Report from Student Representatives

H.1. Motion by ____________, seconded by _______________, that the board receive and
file the FYE05 Audit Report as submitted by the auditing firm of Graeve, Garrelts,
Denham & Bruce. (See enclosure.)

H.2. Motion by ____________, seconded by _______________, that approval be given to
the contract documents for the MNHS project. (See enclosure.)

H.3. Motion by ____________, seconded by ___________________, that the Wide Area
Network and Telephone Services contract be awarded Cox Business Service (CBS) for
a term of four years plus four one-year renewals with a monthly cost of $35,096 and
that the Assistant Superintendent of Technology be authorized and directed to execute
any and all documents related to this project. (See enclosure.)

H.4. Motion by ____________, seconded by ___________________, to approve Rule
1340.1 – Community – Use of School Facilities and Equipment. (See enclosure.)

4



Administrative Memorandum
December 19, 2005
Page 2

H.5. Motion by ____________, seconded by ___________________, to adopt the following
cutscores: 1st Grade AWA: 10 points, 3rd Grade AWA: 14 points, and 8th Grade
Social Studies: 41 points. (See enclosure.)

H.6. Motion by ____________, seconded by ___________________, to change the board
meetings in January to a Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 16, 2006
and a Committee Meeting on Monday, January 23, 2006. (See enclosure.)

H.7. Motion by ____________, seconded by _______________, to approve Personnel
Actions: Resignation, Leave of Absence, Voluntary Early Separation, Local Option
Substitute for Hire, and New Hires. (See enclosure.)

H.8. Litigation (Executive Session)

H.9. Land Acquisition (Executive Session)

I. Reports
1. Preliminary Enrollment Projections
2. Bond Issue Construction Report
3. Technology Purchase Update

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 16, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
2. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, January 23, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 6, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 13, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 20, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in
a single motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board
member.

5









9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



Enclosure H.1.
December 19, 2005

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Audit Report for FYE05

MEETING DATE: December 19, 2005

DEPARTMENT: Business

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Audit Report for FYE05 – To receive and file the FYE05 audit report as submitted by the

district’s independent auditing firm of Graeve, Garrelts, Denham & Bruce.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: Public schools are required to employ independent auditors to review their financial
accounts each year. The auditing firm employed for our district for the FYE05 fiscal year
audit was Graeve, Garrelts, Denham & Bruce (GGD&B).

A copy of the audit is attached. (Signed originals of the audit will be distributed to the
board at the board meeting.) Representatives from GGD&B (i.e., Dave Bruce and Jodi
Renni) will be present at the meeting to address the board and answer questions.

Also attached is a copy of the auditor’s Letter to Management and management’s response
to the items raised in the letter.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the board receive and file the FYE05 audit report as submitted by
the auditing firm of Graeve, Garrelts, Denham & Bruce.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen (Assoc. Supt. Gen. Admin.) and Chris Hughes (Accounting Manager)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



MEMORANDUM

To: All
From: Ken Fossen, Assoc. Supt. Gen. Admin.
Re: Response to Management Letter
Date: December 14, 2005

The auditing firm of Graeve, Garrelts, Denham, & Bruce (GGD&B) conducted the audit
of the financial records of the Millard Public Schools for the year ending 2005.
Associated with its audit report, GGD&B issued a Management Letter (i.e.,
MEMORANDUM I). This letter included some “comments and suggestions” for which
a response from management would be in order. The responses are as follows:

1. Investment Policy

The Management Letter comments on new accounting standards related to “credit
risk” and recommends the adoption of policies related to such.

Management agrees with the recommendation and will draft such policies.
GGD&B has agreed to provide sample policies to assist management in its
drafting endeavors.

2. Accounting Policies

The Management Letter recommends that the District consider adopting a new
accounting practice. In the past, the District has used the cash basis of
accounting. GGD&B is recommending a change from the cash basis of
accounting to the more complex accrual method of accounting.

Management is hesitant to accept the recommendation to adopt the accrual
method of accounting because, in management’s opinion, the cost of
implementing the change would far outweigh its benefits. The change would
require significant cost increases (1) for implementing the change, (2) for on-
going accounting requirements, and (3) for auditing services. The financial
resources required for this accounting change would be in direct competition with
the financial resources needed for educational purposes. In management’s
opinion, the District’s need for resources for educational programs exceeds its
need for additional resources for accounting purposes.

3. Reporting Liabilities

The Management Letter recommends that the District consider including in its
financial reports information related to the obligations it has under its Voluntary
Early Separation Program (VESP).

146



Management agrees that the VESP obligations should be noted in the financial
reports and intends to secure the necessary information so that it can be included
in the financial reports for subsequent fiscal years.

4. Prior Year Comments – Progress Report

a. Segregation of Duties

The Management Letter recommends that the District consider
centralizing the accounting function for all elementary schools.

Management has been considering this issue for some time and has
reached the same conclusion that the auditors reached. Although the
auditors recommendation is based upon segregation of duties,
Managements agreement with the recommendation is based upon the
amount of time the business office spends with building personnel in
training, accounting support, software support, documentation issues, etc.
It is believed that the accounting function for many of the elementary
schools could be centralized without the need for additional business
office personnel. It is the intent of management to pilot the centralization
of 1-2 of the elementary schools in the coming year in order to “work out
the bugs” and develop appropriate processes and procedures for full
implementation in the future.

b. Accounting Policies and Procedures Manual

The Management Letter contained no new recommendations.

c. Payroll Account

The Management Letter contained no new recommendations.

147



Enclosure H.2.
December 19, 2005

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of MNHS Contract Documents

MEETING DATE: December 19, 2005

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Approval of MNHS Contract Documents – The approval of the contract

documents for the construction project at MNHS.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: The construction project at MNHS is at the contract document phase. The contract
documents are extensive. If anyone would like to review them in their entirety,
contact Ken Fossen at 895-8401 and arrangements will be made.

Attached is information from the architects (i.e., The Schemmer Associates) with
regard to the MNHS project. Bill Cramer (TSA) will be at the meeting to present
the information and address questions.

If the contract documents are approved, the next presentation at a board meeting
will be the awarding of the bids for the project.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that approval be given to the contract documents for the MNHS
project.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen (Associate Superintendent for General Administration), Don Mohlman
(MRI Construction Manager), and Bill Cramer (TSA Architects)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



Enclosure H.3.
December 19, 2005

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Wide Area Network Data Lines and Telephone Services Contract

MEETING DATE: 19 December 2005

DEPARTMENT: Technology Division

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: WAN Data Lines and Telephone Services Contract

ACTION DESIRED: Approval X

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Currently, the Millard Public Schools contracts with Qwest
for data T-1 lines to all buildings and with Qwest for ISDN/Centrex telephone services
(including voicemail, call forwarding, etc). The T-1 contract has rolled over to month-to-month
charges and the telephone contract is up in April, 2006.

T-1 Data Lines
(1.54 Mbps)

Telephone
Services Combined Costs

Current Monthly
Costs $5,833.00 $25,833.00 $31,666.00

Current Yearly
Costs $70,000.00 $310,000.00 $380,000.00

As reported to the Board on November 14, 2005, the District is in need of significantly increased
bandwidth to accommodate data, voice, and video. An RFP addressing WAN bandwidth
requirements (25Mbps for Elem., 50Mbps for Middle Schools, and 100 Mbps for High Schools)
and associated telephone services (PRI and analog) was released on November 7th. Responses
were received on December 6th.

Fifteen proposals were received that addressed some or all of the three RFP defined areas—
WAN, Telephone Services, VoIP equipment. Three of the responses addressed WAN needs only
and were among the most expensive proposals received. Four proposals addressed both WAN
and telephone services (see attached spreadsheet). Of the four, two were judged to be lacking
regarding network management, unaccounted for build-out costs, and/or misinterpretations of
services required. The VoIP equipment recommendation is pending.

157



Meetings were conducted with two vendors, Qwest and Cox, to clarify their proposals from both
a technical and cost perspective. Based on a review of these two responses and final cost
analyses (including construction and/or implementation costs, equipment costs, and monthly
recurring costs = Total Cost of Ownership for the life of the contract), the solution chosen is that
presented by Cox Business Services (CBS). Although Qwest’s proposal appeared to be
competitive it did not bring the fiber connections into the building. This additional cost was
considered in the final decision.

CBS has proposed a solution that will provide the Millard Public Schools with fiber connections
to each building meeting both the bandwidth requirements for data, video, and voice and the
necessary telephone connections as requested in the RFP. The CBS proposal provides the
District and all of its facilities with an affordable, reliable, redundant, scalable network capable
of providing for the needs of the District well into the future. A number of pricing options were
included in the response to the RFP.

The pricing option that is being recommended includes the requested bandwidth of 25/50/100
Mbps (elementary, middle, and high schools respectively), PRI and analog lines, with all
construction/installation costs waived. The project could begin on March 1, 2006 and be
completed by May 1, 2006, for existing locations.

This proposal calls for a four-year contract with four one-year automatic renewals (4+1+1+1+1).
The cost of this proposal is $35,096 a month or $421,152 a year. Total cost over the eight years
is $3,369,216. [After applying the District’s e-Rate discount of 41% the cost is reduced to
$20,707/month, $248,480/year, $1,987,840. E-Rate discounts are received one year in arrears
and are dependent on yearly legislative authorization.]

The difference between current costs and the cost of this recommendation follows:

Current
Combined

Costs

Proposed
Combined Costs Difference

Monthly Costs
$31,573.00 $35,096.00 $3,523.00

Yearly Costs
$378,876.00 $421,152.00 $42,276.00

Projected 8 Yr
Cost $3,031,008.00 $3,369,216.00 $338,208.00

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Wide Area Network and Telephone
Services contract be awarded Cox Business Services (CBS) for a term of four years plus four
one-year renewals with a monthly cost of $35,096 and that the Assistant Superintendent of
Technology be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to this project.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:

158



RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Mark Feldhausen, Assistant Superintendent of Technology

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

Vendor WAN
Telephone
Service -

PRI

Installation
-

Hardware

Monthly
Cost

Yearly Cost
48 Month
Contract

TOTAL COST
Comments

McLeod
USA

$90,045.22 $90,045.22 $1,080,542.64 $4,322,170.56
Did not address
secondary schools

Conterra

$93,960.00 $93,960.00 $1,127,520.00 $4,510,080.00

Unite

$50,605.37 $6,410.43 $57,015.80 $684,189.60 $2,736,758.40

MSI
Systems

$40,639.60

Included
with
WAN price $26,400.00 $40,639.60 $487,675.20 $1,977,100.80

Referenced Qwest
proposal for buildout,
redundancy, etc

Qwest

$49,536.84

Included
with
WAN price $32,176.10 $49,536.84 $594,442.08 $2,409,944.42

Would require District
to contract separately
to get fiber from
property line into the
building in excess of
$400,000.
Redundancy by
existing T-1

Cox

$51,735.80

Included
with
WAN price Waived $51,735.80 $620,829.60 $2,483,318.40

Dark
Fiber

$74,328.00 $190,000.00 $74,328.00 $891,936.00 $3,757,744.00

159



Enclosure H.4.
December 19, 2005

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Rule 1340.1 – Community – Use of School Facilities and
Equipment

MEETING DATE: December 19, 2005

DEPARTMENT: Athletics and Activities

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: Approval __X__

BACKGROUND:
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: To update the policy to include
Buell Stadium.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: N/A

TIME LINE: N/A

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Craig Whaley, Director of Athletics and Activities

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ________________________________________

160



Community
Use of School Facilities and Equipment 1340.1

I. Priorities for Facility Use

The following priorities are established for scheduling the use of School District facilities and equipment:

A. Priority 1 Uses: Building or District-wide school events, activities, and programs;
B. Priority 2 Uses: Events or activities that are designed to serve Millard students or are related to

any function of the school when such functions are planned and directed by school-affiliated non-
profit groups and events or activities sponsored by PAYBAC Partners;

C. Priority 3a Uses: Events or activities which serve Millard area youth (i.e., a majority of
participants must be from Millard) that are planned and directed by non-profit youth organizations
not directly affiliated with the school;

D. Priority 3b Uses: Events or activities which serve youth and are sponsored by non-profit
organizations not directly affiliated with the school and charitable fundraising events or activities;

E. Priority 4 Uses: Non-profit civic, service, or other groups whose purpose is to promote the
general welfare of the community;

F. Priority 5 Uses: Individuals or groups involved in activities not listed above.
II. Limitations on Use of School Facilities

In no event will the use of school facilities and equipment be permitted:

A. when the use would interfere with any class-related use;
B. when the use would interfere with events sponsored by the school or school groups;
C. when the use would involve illegal activity;
D. when the organization or individual(s) involved have previously engaged in (or can reasonably be

expected to engage in) any form of illegal discrimination or violence, or, when such organization
or individual(s) advocate (or have a reputation for advocating) violence or rebellion against the
United States, the State of Nebraska, or any political subdivision thereof.

E. when the use would be of a morally objectionable nature or would be contrary to any of the
District’s policies or rules, or, would be contrary to the goals and/or objectives of the District’s
educational programs;

F. when the use would result in the District’s facilities or equipment being altered, modified, or
changed;

G. when the use would result in the District’s facilities being used to store the equipment of the user;
H. when, in the opinion of the administration, the use would present an unacceptable risk of damage

or excessive wear and tear to the facilities or equipment;
I. when, in the opinion of the administration, the use would present a significant disruption to the

effective administration of a building or District program.

District facilities will not be made available for private social functions, including but not limited to,
wedding receptions; birthday, graduation, or swimming parties; or other such events. Building
administrators may place further limitations on uses in their buildings. Such limitations may include, but
shall not be limited to: excluding the use of indoor facilities for soccer and/or baseball practices; excluding
the use of science laboratories, media centers, elementary classrooms, and/or administrative offices; and
excluding the use of facilities if such would be reasonably necessary to ensure timely cleaning and
maintenance. Such additional limitations by a building administrator shall be supported by a reasonable
rationale, shall be consistently applied, and shall be reported to the office of the Associate Superintendent
for General Administration District Director of Activities.

Building administrators or their designees may inspect and review any and all items brought into the
building to ensure appropriate building safety and effective administration of the facilities. If, in the opinion

161



of such administrator, any items would be unsafe, inappropriate, or undesirable in the building, he/she may
prohibit such item from entering the building or require its removal from the building. In the event the
building administrator’s directive is not complied with expeditiously, approval for the use of the facility
shall be withdrawn immediately by the administrator.

III. Applications for Use of School Facilities

The administration shall develop an Application for Use of School Facilities form to assist with the
administration of this rule. Such form shall be completed by all non-school organizations requesting the use
of school facilities or equipment. The application shall require that all applicants:

A. agree to comply with all District policies, rules, and regulations that govern use of facilities;
B. agree to be responsible for any damages incurred to facilities, grounds, or equipment during the

period of such use;
C. agree to have the Associate Superintendent for General Administration District Director of

Activities as the final determiner as to whether repair or replacement is the appropriate remedy for
any damages.

D. agree to be wholly responsible for the supervision and control of all persons and activities during
such use;

E. agree to protect, indemnify, and hold the school District harmless for any and all claims, suits,
actions, damages, judgments, or causes of action arising out of or in any way related to such use,
and, further that, if requested, the applicant will provide, prior to the planned use of a facility, a
Certificate of Liability Insurance in the amount of one million dollars, naming Millard Public
Schools as an additional insured.

District employees wishing to use a District facility for other than their assigned contractual duties must
submit a completed Application for Use of School Facilities and shall be subject to the same rules
(including fees and charges) as non-employees.

IV. Cancellation of Approved Applications

A previously approved facility use may be cancelled for one or more of the following reasons:

A. failure of the applicant to pay applicable fees or charges for this use or any prior use;
B. failure to reimburse the District for damages incurred during any prior use;
C. evidence satisfactory to the District that applicant's use of the facility would violate a District

policy, rule, or regulation or would be illegal;
D. any violation of the terms and conditions of the application;
E. any change in the school activities that presents a conflict with the use;
F. any snow or ice accumulation that would require additional removal costs for the District; or
G. any other event or circumstance which, in the opinion of the administration, necessitates

cancellation of the use.

In the event a previously approved facility use is cancelled, the District shall not be responsible for any
damages incurred by the applicant as a result of such.

An applicant may, without penalty, cancel a previously approved facility use by giving notice of such to the
District at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled use. If notice is given within 48 hours but prior to the use,
the facility use fee may not be refunded.

V. Use of Facilities Rate Schedule

162



A Use of Facilities Rate Schedule shall be reviewed and revised as necessary and distributed by the
business office. Such schedule shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, fees for facilities use,
equipment use, access charges and charges for staff time.

VI. Rate Schedules

The following fees and charges shall be assessed for the use of school District facilities and equipment:

A. Priority 1 Uses: No fees will be assessed. A charge may be assessed for a use which requires
additional staff time.

B. Priority 2 Uses: No facility use or equipment use fee will be assessed. An access charge will be
assessed for weekend use. A charge may be assessed for a use which requires additional staff
time.

C. Priority 3 Uses: No facility use or equipment use fee will be assessed. An access charge will be
assessed for weekend use. A charge may be assessed for a use which requires additional staff
time. The exception to this is the use of Lyle Buell Stadium or the Millard South Track Facility, in
which a reduced facility use and/or equipment use fee will be assessed and an access charge will
be assessed. A charge may be assessed for a use which requires additional staff time.

D. Priority 4 Uses: A reduced facility use and/or equipment use fee will be assessed. An access
charge will be assessed for weekend use. A charge may be assessed for a use which requires
additional staff time. The exception to this is the use of Lyle Buell Stadium or the Millard South
Track Facility, in which a reduced facility use and/or equipment use fee will be assessed and an
access charge will be assessed. A charge may be assessed for a use which requires additional staff
time.

E. Priority 5 Uses: A full facility use and/or equipment use fee will be assessed. An access charge
will be assessed for weekend use. A charge may be assessed for a use which requires additional
staff time. The exception to this is the use of Lyle Buell Stadium or the Millard South Track
Facility, in which the full facility use and/or equipment use fee will be assessed and an access
charge will be assessed. A charge may be assessed for a use which requires additional staff time.

Use fees may be waived for public service meetings or presentations upon prior approval by the Associate
Superintendent for General Administration District Director of Activities.

VII. Equipment Requirements

Approval for the use of a facility shall not include the use of school equipment unless specifically requested
and approved on the application form.

VIII. Access Charges

An hourly access charge shall be assessed to compensate the District for expenses incurred in providing
building access and other normal overhead expenses, such as heating, air conditioning, lighting, and
general maintenance services. Such charge shall be assessed for the hours of the use plus the additional
time required to cleanup and secure the area.

If a user desires to have a custodian assigned exclusively to assist with the use, an additional charge for
such service shall be assessed.

In situations where no advanced cancellation notice has been received by the District and the user does not
appear at the scheduled time, the staff assigned shall remain available at the facility for one hour before
securing the building and departing. An access fee will be assessed to the scheduled user for such time.

IX. Special Staff Requirements

163



District staff must be present when certain school facilities are used. These facilities shall include, without
limitation, kitchen facilities, swimming pools (where a life guard must be assigned), auditoriums (where
stage and lighting technicians may be needed), and other such areas as may be determined by the
administration. When such additional staff are required to be present, the using organization will be
charged for District expenses associated with such additional staff.

Arrangements for any additional staff (except kitchen staff) shall be made by the building administrator or
his/her designee. Arrangements for kitchen staff shall be made by the District’s Director of Food Service or
his/her designee.

If the approved use involves employees other than those specifically required by the District, the user may
contract directly with the employee.

X. Religious Organizations

Religious organizations may make application to use a District facility for a period of one year. An
extension may be granted if satisfactory evidence exists that the organization is in the process of
constructing or acquiring other non-District facilities for its use.

XI. Use of Open Areas

School playgrounds, practice fields, and other open areas which are not being used for school activities
shall be available to the general public on a first-come, first-served basis from one hour before sunrise to
one hour after sunset each day. Thereafter, such areas shall be closed to public use. The only organizations
that may submit an application to reserve the use of such areas shall be non-profit organizations serving
Millard youth. Any groups using such facilities shall be responsible for any damage occurring as a result of
such use and shall be responsible for clearing the grounds of litter after such use.

XII. Snow Removal

In the event of significant snowfall (or accumulation of ice) prior to a use of District facilities, the District’s
operations and maintenance supervisors shall make a determination as to whether or not snow (or ice)
removal is required. If such is required and if snow (or ice) removal is not necessary for other school-
related activities, the scheduled use shall be canceled or, if mutually agreed to by the District and the user,
the snow (or ice) will be removed by District personnel or contractors and an additional charge for such
will be assessed to the user.

All snow (and ice) removal on school District property must be made by school District personnel or by
properly insured independent contractors approved by and working for the District. Users will not be
permitted to engage in snow (or ice) removal activities nor will they be permitted to hold activities on
school property without proper snow (or ice) removal.

XIII. Vehicle Parking

Vehicles may properly park in school District parking areas when attending school activities, when
conducting school related business, or when in attendance at any approved use of school facilities. The
school District grounds may not be used for any other parking of private vehicles. Any vehicles which are
not permitted by this rule to be parked on school property shall be subject to towing from school grounds at
the owner's expense. Similarly, vehicles that are improperly parked shall also be subject to towing from
school grounds at the owner’s expense. Improper parking shall include, but not be limited to, parking in
driveways or throughways, parking over painted stall lines, and parking on grassed areas.

Related Policy: 1340P

164

http://policy.mpsomaha.org/communityrelations/1340p.html


Rule Approved: August 15, 1983 Millard Public Schools

Revised: September 21, 1998; October 7, 2002,
December 19, 2005 Omaha NE

165



Enclosure H.5.
December 19, 2005

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: New ELOs and Associated Cutscores

Meeting Date: December 19, 2005

Department: Planning and Evaluation, Educational Services

Title and Brief
Description: New ELOs (1st and 3rd grade AWA and 8th grade Social Studies) were put

in place this fall. By board policy, these mastery levels are approved by
the board.

Action Desired: Approval _x__ Discussion Information Only ____

Background: There were 25 teachers pulled together for each standard setting (1st grade
AWA, 3rd grade AWA, and 8th grade social studies). The teachers’
professional judgments, using multiple methods, generated the proposed
cutscores. In the case of 8th grade social studies, some 6th and 7 th grade
teachers were involved, as the assessment covers that content as well as 8th

grade.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: N.A.

Recommendations: Adopt the following cutscores:
1st Grade AWA: 10 points (Identifies 7.3% as Below Proficient)
3rd Grade AWA: 14 points (Identifies 12.3% as Below Proficient)
8th Grade Social Studies: 41 points (Identifies 10.3% as Below Proficient)

Strategic Plan
Reference: To meet the mission of the district.

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: Without cutscores, students would not be identified for remediation.

Timeline: Begin using results immediately for improving student performance.

Responsible
Persons: John Crawford, Martha Bruckner, Carol Newton, Judy Porter, Charlene

Snyder

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________

166



Distribution of Scores

1st Grade AWA

7.3%

26.0%

31.1%
35.6%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%
20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

Below Proficient Barely Proficient Proficient Beyond Proficient

Proficiency

%
P

ro
fi

ci
en

t

3rd Grade AWA

12.3%

24.8%

31.5% 31.4%

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%
35.0%
40.0%

Below Proficient Barely Proficient Proficient Beyond Proficient

Proficiency

%
P

ro
fi

ci
en

t

8th Grade Social Studies

10.3%

29.3%
26.8%

33.6%

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%
35.0%
40.0%

Below Proficient Barely Proficient Proficient Beyond Proficient

Proficiency

%
P

ro
fi

ci
en

t

167



Enclosure H.6.
December 19, 2005

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval to Change Board Meetings in January

MEETING DATE: December 19, 2005

DEPARTMENT: Board of Education

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: Approval __X__

BACKGROUND:
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: .

RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended to change the meeting in January to a
Board of Education meeting on Monday, January 16, 2005 and a Committee of the
Whole meeting on Monday, January 23, 2005.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: N/A

TIME LINE: N/A

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Board of Education

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ________________________________________

168

sphelps
Text Box
2006

sphelps
Text Box
2006



Enclosure H.7.
December 19, 2005

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: December 19, 2005

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: Personnel items: (1) New Hires, (2) Leave of Absence, (3)
Resignations, (4) Voluntary Early Separation, and (5) Local
Option Substitute for Hire

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: NA

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________

169



December 19, 2005

RESIGNATIONS

Recommend: the following resignations be accepted:

1. Tina Shimerdla – Third grade teacher at Aldrich Elementary School. She is resigning due to
family reasons. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

170



December 19, 2005

LEAVE OF ABSENCE REQUESTS

Recommend: the following extended leave without pay requests be approved:

1. Kelly Buscher – Foreign language teacher at West High School. She is requesting a
Leave of Absence for the balance of the 2005/06 school year for family reasons.

171



December 19, 2005

TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE

Recommend: the following teacher be hired for the 2005-06 school year:

1. Elizabeth McNeill – BA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Fourth grade teacher at Bryan
Elementary School.

2. Sara Hoffman – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Elementary position for the 2006/07
school year.

3. Stephanie Oster – BA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Special Education Resource teacher at
Morton Elementary School.

4. Amber Potts – BA – Wayne State College, Wayne, NE. Industrial Tech teacher at Beadle Middle
School.

172



 December 19, 2005 
 

Voluntary Early Separation 
 
 
 
Recommend: The following qualified candidates be approved to participate in the District’s Voluntary 

Early Separation Program: 
 
 
 
 
Name Position School Years of Credited Service
 
 
 
John Crawford Executive Director DSAC 16 
 Planning and Evaluation 
 
Jayne Nielsen Grade 1 Teacher Holling Heights 32 
 
Betty Bragg Grade 3 Teacher Holling Heights 28 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

173



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Local Option Substitute Teacher for Hire

Meeting Date: December 19, 2005

Department: Human Resources

Title & Brief
Description: Recommendation to Hire a Local Option Substitute Teacher

Action Desired: Approval to hire the following person as a Local Option Substitute Teacher:

Sara Hoffman- Ms. Hoffman has been a student teacher for us and will continue at Holling
Heights as a kindergarten teacher.

Background: The Nebraska State Board of Education has approved the use of "Local Option" substitute
teachers. A Local Option substitute must have completed at least 60 hours of college
including one course in teacher education. The Local Option substitute must be approved for
hire as a substitute teacher by the local board of education. Once approved by the local board,
the candidate must apply to the Nebraska Department of Education, Office of Teacher
Certification, for a Local Option Substitute Teaching Certificate. The certificate is valid for
up to 40 substitute teaching days per school year in the District requesting the certificate.

Options And
Alternatives: Continue to use substitute teachers who have at least a bachelor's degree in teacher education,

and are certified to teach or substitute teach in Nebraska. When a shortage exists, combine
classes or have teachers give up planning time or supervision to cover classes.

Recommendation: Approval of this Local Option Substitute Teacher

Strategic Plan
Reference:

Implications Of
Adoption/Rejection:

Timeline:

Responsible Person: Jeanine Beaudin

Associate Superintendent Approval: ______________________________

Superintendent Approval: ___________________________________

174



Enclosure I.1.
December 19, 2005

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Preliminary Projections for Fall, 2006

Meeting Date: December 19, 2005

Department: Planning & Evaluation

Title and Brief
Description: Each year in December, we produce preliminary

enrollment projections by grade level by school.

Action Desired: Approval ___ Discussion x Information Only ____

Background: Projections are calculated using the official end-of-
September enrollments.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: N.A.

Recommendations: Option, transfer, and kindergarten roundup numbers will
be tracked through the spring, resulting in final
projections in April/May, 2006.

Strategic Plan
Reference: To meet the mission of the district.

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N.A.

Timeline: Use immediately for planning purposes.

Responsible
Persons: John Crawford

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________

175



Preliminary Projections for 2006-07

Proj K 2006
Proj 1st

2006
Proj 2nd

2006
Proj 3rd

2006
Proj 4th

2006
Proj 5th

2006 self cont
Projected

Total
Official End-
of-Sept. 2005 Difference

Abbott 70 69 56 76 87 65 423 424 -1
Ackerman 92 95 102 93 111 95 15 603 607 -4
Aldrich 70 78 79 62 57 69 415 396 19
Black Elk 78 79 108 93 104 107 569 589 -20
Bryan 68 69 59 63 48 66 373 365 8
Cather 66 60 59 75 65 71 396 412 -16
Cody 31 28 34 33 34 30 18 208 196 12
Cottonwood 57 59 64 49 49 59 337 345 -8
Disney 30 30 50 41 46 35 14 246 269 -23
Ezra Millard 60 58 71 83 71 75 13 431 426 5
Harvey Oaks 38 39 38 48 44 42 249 257 -8
Hitchcock 36 31 28 34 32 38 199 197 2
Holling Heights 85 85 73 68 68 59 438 396 42
Montclair 100 95 91 104 76 87 553 554 -1
Morton 54 63 49 62 57 74 18 377 382 -5
Neihardt 103 111 70 84 87 101 556 569 -13
Norris 60 65 55 60 60 43 18 361 347 14
Reeder 110 111 117 91 88 93 610 511 99
Rockwell 59 57 60 53 46 54 26 355 347 8
Rohwer 70 71 68 65 74 66 17 431 418 13
Sandoz 46 49 48 52 43 48 286 279 7
Wheeler 95 98 81 96 86 96 19 571 541 30
Willowdale 74 73 68 78 72 79 444 419 25

1552 1573 1528 1563 1505 1552 158 9431 9246 185

Proj 6th
2006

Proj 7th
2006

Proj 8th
2006 Proj Total

AMS 276 283 263 822 802 20
BMS 247 223 233 703 659 44
CMS 242 247 239 728 732 -4
KMS 308 324 300 932 933 -1
NMS 187 199 200 586 601 -15
RMS 271 270 288 829 826 3
MS Alter 0 8 16 24 24 0

1531 1554 1539 4624 4577 47

Proj 9th
2006

Proj 10th
2006

Proj 11th
2006

Proj 12th
2006 Proj Total

North HS 572 647 630 578 2427 2429 -2
South HS 453 534 557 487 2031 2076 -45
West HS 533 509 533 469 2044 1968 76
MLC 0 0 22 69 91 91 0

1558 1690 1742 1603 6593 6564 29

Contracted SPED 41 41 0
Young Adult Program 41 41 0 8-Dec-05
District Projected Total 20730 20469 261

176



Enclosure I.2.
December 19, 2005

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Construction Report

MEETING DATE: December 19, 2005

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Construction Report – A report from the District’s construction management firm

with regard to the progress on projects related to the 2005 bond issue.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: The District has engaged the services of Magnum Resources, Inc. (RMI) to act as
the construction manager for the District’s construction/renovation projects related
to the 2005 bond issue.

Don Mohlman (RMI) will be present at the meeting to present the construction
update (see attached) and to answer questions.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Don Mohlman (RMI) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General
Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

177



DECEMBER 2005
Vol. 6

178



Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 6
December 2005

Index

I. Executive Summary Page 1 - 2

 Administrative Overview
 Project(s) Overview
 Budget Overview

II. Project Status Report Page 3 - 6

 Buell Stadium
 South High School
 North High School
 West High School
 Alternative High School
 Beadle Middle School
 Elementary #24
 Elementary #25
 Ackerman Elementary

III. Master Control Budget Page 7 - 8

 Control Budget Summary
 Detailed Project Summary

IV. Master Control Schedule

 Project Milestone Schedule Page 9

179



Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 6
December 2005

Executive Summary

Administrative Overview

 Continuation of weekly meetings with the Bond Committee consisting of Ken Fossen,
Mark Feldhausen, Ed Rockwell, Kim Thompson, Bob Snowden, Don Mohlman,
Randy Schroeder, and Ron Hager.

 Members of the Bond Committee (Ken Fossen, Ed Rockwell, and Don Mohlman)
met with the City Planning Department (and representatives from other departments)
to present all 2005 MPS Bond Issue Projects and their anticipated schedule.
Hardened storm shelter requirements were discussed in detail regarding new and
existing facilities. The meeting was positive and the City will consider a global
(MPS, OPS, Westside, Gretna, and Elkhorn) response to provide direction for future
construction projects.

Project(s) Overview

 Buell Stadium –Preliminary work for the Track Timing System has been completed
for final installation next spring. Review of existing contours at the East practice
field (discuss areas) is under study by DLR Group.

 South High School: Phase 1 –Complete

 South High School: Phase 2 –Contract Documents were approved by the Board on
November 21st and are in the final stages of development with an anticipated bid date
of January 24, 2006.

180

DMohlman
Text Box
Page 1



 North High School –Contract Documents have been presented by Schemmer
Associates to the Bond Committee and will be presented, as a separate agenda item,
to the School Board on December 19, 2005. The anticipated bid date is in February
2006.

 West High School –Contract Documents are in progress with a presentation to the
Board scheduled for January 16, 2006. The anticipated bid date is in February 2006.

 Alternative High School –Site selection is in progress by the District.

 Beadle Middle School –A project kick-off meeting with BCDM was held at Beadle
Middle School on December 12, 2005. The building additions have been previously
master planned for construction. Occupancy is anticipated to be July of 2007.

 Elementary #24 –Site pre-grading is complete. Commencement of public
improvements are pending approval of the final plat by the City Council. General
Construction has been awarded to ConStruct Inc. with a spring start anticipated.

 Elementary #25 –Pre-grading has been completed by the Developer and verified by
a compliance survey procured by MPS. Several plan modifications have been
suggested by MPS for the site adaptation of Fire Ridge Elementary (Elkhorn). It is
the intent to complete the contract documents, but defer bidding the project until the
fall of 2007; or sooner if requested by the District.

 Ackerman Elementary –Progress is currently in the Design Development phase
with bids anticipated to be received in April or May for commencement of
construction over the summers of 2006 and 2007.

Budget Overview

 All bond issue projects bid to date (18%) have been awarded under budget.

181

DMohlman
Text Box
Page 2



Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 6
December 2005

Project Status Report

HIGH SCHOOLS

 Buell Stadium –DLR Group / Nemaha Landscaping / Dactronics
o Warranty phase for field improvements
o In process for installation of track timing system

 South High School –DLR Group
o Contract Document Phase
o HVAC renovations at 300/400 wing (building fund) incorporated into project
o Anticipated bid date of January 24, 2006

 North High School –Schemmer Associates
o Presentation of Construction Documents for School Board approval
o Anticipated bid date in February 2006

 West High School –Prochaska Associates
o Contract Document Phase
o Board approval of Construction Documents anticipated January 16, 2005
o Anticipated bid date in February 2006

 Alternative High School - BCDM
o Tentative schedule for project implementation is 4th quarter 2006
o Site selection in progress by District

MIDDLE SCHOOL

 Beadle Middle School - BCDM
o Project on-site kick-off meeting held for commencement of Design Phase
o Anticipated occupancy in fall of 2007

182

DMohlman
Text Box
Page 3



ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

 Elementary #24 –Schemmer Associates / Heimes Excavating / ConStruct, Inc.
o Pre-grading work completed by Heimes before snowfall
o Verification survey completed for Pre-grading
o Completing process for approval of Final Plat by City Council
o Contract for Public Improvements awarded to Heimes
o Contract for General Construction work awarded to ConStruct Inc.

Elementary #24 @ 198th Street looking South –December 6, 2005

183

DMohlman
Text Box
Page 4



Elementary #24 Entrance to parking area in front of building location - December 6, 2005

Elementary #24 Building location looking Southwest - December 6, 2005

184

DMohlman
Text Box
Page 5



 Elementary #25 –DLR Group
o Pre-grading has been completed by the Developer
o Site utilities and street paving anticipated to be completed by Developer in

early Summer of 2006
o Completed pre-grading compliance survey with DLR Group
o Continue with design meetings for the new school (site adaptation)
o Board presentation for approval of Design Development anticipated for

January 16, 2006

 Ackerman Elementary –Schemmer Associates
o Design meetings for the renovation of the existing facility continue.
o Completed process and presentation to School Board regarding construction

issues.
o Attended meeting with City of Omaha Planning personnel regarding

construction issue and await formal construction guidelines.

185

DMohlman
Text Box
Page 6



186

DMohlman
Text Box
Page 7



187

DMohlman
Text Box
Page 8



Dec Jan Feb

Bond Committee Meetings 1, 8, 15, 22, 29 5, 12, 19, 26 2, 9, 16, 23
Board Committee of the Whole Meetings 12 23 13
Board Meetings 5, 19 16 6, 20

Project Receive Bids Project

Commencement Bond Committee Bond Committee School Board Bond Committee School Board Bond Committee School Board Completion

Elem Schools

Ackerman 3-Aug-05 16-Nov-05 01-Aug-07

Elementary #24

Overlot Grading 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 14-Sep-05 15-Sep-05 19-Sep-05 21-Nov-05

Public Improv. 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 25-Oct-05 27-Oct-05 07-Nov-05 01-Jun-06

Building 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 25-Oct-05 27-Oct-05 07-Nov-05 01-Jun-07

Elementary #25 19-Aug-05 17-Nov-05 15-Dec-05 16-Jan-05 01-Jun-08

Middle Schools

Beadle MS 12-Dec-05 01-Jun-07

High Schools

Buell Stadium 28-Aug-05

North HS 21-Jul-05 01-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 01-Dec-05 19-Dec-05 07-Feb-06 09-Feb-05 20-Feb-06 01-Jul-07

South HS

Phase I 2005 26-May-05 06-Jun-05 07-Jun-05 09-Jun-05 14-Jun-05 05-Aug-05

Phase II - 2006 14-Jul-05 11-Aug-05 15-Aug-05 20-Oct-05 21-Nov-05 24-Jan-06 26-Jan-06 06-Feb-06 01-Jul-07

West HS 11-Aug-05 06-Oct-05 17-Oct-05 29-Dec-05 16-Jan-06 21-Feb-06 23-Feb-06 06-Mar-06 01-Jul-07

Alternative HS 01-Jun-08

NOTE: Dates shown in blue/italics are tentative projections to be confirmed

Design Development Contract Documents Contract AwardProject
Program /

Schematic Design

Board Schedule 121905

188

DMohlman
Text Box
Page 9



Enclosure I.3.
December 19, 2005

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Laptop Computers for Teachers and Administrators

MEETING DATE: December 19, 2005

DEPARTMENT: Technology Division

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Laptop Computers for Teachers and Administrators

ACTION DESIRED: __X___ Information

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: On August 1, 2005, the Board of Education approved the
recommendation that “. . . a District designated laptop computer be provided each certificated
teacher and administrator to be used in the fulfillment of job requirements.”

The approved proposal called for Apple iBooks for elementary teachers and PC laptops for
secondary teachers and administrators. These laptops would best match that equipment and
software that provides curriculum and instructional support and/or the requirements as defined
for administrative purposes. The proposal included all regular education classroom teachers,
special education teachers, itinerant teachers, counselors, school psychologists, OT’s/PT’s, and
building/district administrators.

Since August, the Technology Division has conducted teacher focus groups on laptop
configuration and needs. These meetings provided input on teacher concerns regarding
availability of bags, a mouse, memory, software, and much more. Additional meetings were
held for the purpose of technical review of Apple laptop options and Windows-based laptops.

In so doing, Windows PC’s from Dell, Gateway, HP, IBM-Lenova, and Toshiba were
demonstrated and tested by both Technology Division personnel and teachers/Technology
Initiators. These reviews resulted in three of the vendors being eliminated for reasons that
included heat, weight, chassis durability and design, functionality, etc. The remaining two
vendors—HP and IBM-Lenova were invited to submit bids. Since Apple iBooks are a
proprietary product competitive bids cannot be sought.

189



The winning vendor for Windows PC laptops was HP with a bid that was 10.5% less than IBM-
Lenova.

HP IBM
Unit: HP Compaq nc6120 Thinkpad R52

Config: Pent.M 760 2.0GHz Pent.M 2.0Ghz
Win XP Pro Win XP Pro
15" SXGA+WVA 15" SXGA+TFT
1GB (1x1GB) 1GB (2x512MB)
80GB (5400rpm) 80GB (5400rpm)
cd-rom/dvd-dvd+/-rw dvd+/-rw
6 cell Li-Ion battery (4.8hr) 6 cell Li-Ion Battery
Integrated WLAN 802.11
a/b/g IntelPro/Wireless(802.11a/b/g)
IEEE1394 * IEEE1394 (Firewire)Integrated
56K high speed modem 56k v.92 modem
Integrated 1/100/1000 NIC 1GB Ethernet Integrated
5 yr onsite warranty ($159)** 5 yr onsite Parts & Labor

Price: $1,408.00 $1,529.00
Mouse: USB Optical Scroll / $17.00 USB Optical Wheel / $11.00
Computrace
Complete:
4 yr. $82.00 $125.00
Total With Mouse:

$1,507.00 $1,665.00

Therefore, the recommended laptop configuration and price is as follows:

Apple iBook
14”screen/1.42GHz processor/1GB(RAM)/60GB(HDrive)/SuperDrive (DVD burner)/OS-
10.4/Ethernet & wireless/with iLife (iPhoto, iMovie, Garage Band, etc)/AMP for iLife and OS-
X/4 yr warranty $ 1503.00

HP nc6120
15” SXGA+WVA/2.0GHz Pent. M/1GB(RAM)/80GB(HDrive)/DVD+-RW/Ethernet & wireless
a,b,g/Windows XP/5 yr. onsite warranty $ 1408.00

In addition to the standard Office Suite for Mac and/or Windows, it is also recommended that
CompuTrace Complete be purchased for each laptop. This is security software that is capable of
reporting via the Internet the location of a lost or stolen laptop. It also provides a means by
which the harddrive might be remotely purged of all data and programs. This is applicable for
both PC’s and Mac’s.

190



The intention is to purchase the teacher/administrative laptops outright. Since the Board has
asked about leasing, the following chart is provided as an example of the additional costs when
lease agreements are considered. Please note that this is in addition to the almost 5% that the
District is already paying to use Bond monies for technology acquisition.

iBook** HP nc6120***

Purchase Price/Unit $1,503.00 $1,462.00

# Units Req. 750 950

Total Purchase Cost $1,127,250.00 $1,388,900.00

Lease Price/Unit $1,742.00 $1,462.00

Total Lease w/Yrly Payment $1,306,500.00 $1,510,568.00

Lease Cost Increase $179,250.00 $121,668.00

% Cost Increase 15.90% 8.76%

Total Lease w/Monthly
Payment $1,548,000.00

Lease Cost Increase $159,100.00

% Cost Increase 11.46%
**Apple provides
0% interest.
However, the unit
price is discounted
when making an
outright purchase
rather than leasing.

***Includes 4-yr license
for CompuTrace
Complete at $82/unit,
a $17 mouse, but only
a 4-yr onsite warranty
at a reduction of
$45/unit.

The intent is to move forward with orders for this equipment with distribution and training
starting in late February through March.

A separate report will be submitted in January that outlines the distribution process and staff
development components.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Mark Feldhausen, Assistant Superintendent of Technology

191



SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

192


	Addendum to Dec. 19, 2005.pdf
	Board Packet December 19, 2005.pdf
	Board of Education Meeting December 19, 2005
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes December 5, 2005
	Financials
	F.1. Employees of the Month
	H.1. Receive and File the 2004-2005 Audit Report
	H.2. Approval of MNHS Construction Contract Documents
	H.3. Approval of the Wide Area Network Data Lines and Telephone Services Contract
	H.4. Approval of Rule 1340.1 - Community - Use of School Facilities and Equipment
	H.5. Approval of New ELOs and Associated Cutscores
	H.6. Approval to Change Board Meetings in January
	H.7. Approval of Personnel Actions:  Resignation, Leave of Absence, Voluntary Early Separation, Local Option Substitute for Hire, New Hires
	I.1. Preliminary Enrollment Projections
	I.2. Bond Issue Construction Report
	I.3. Technology Purchase Update




